The Technocrats and Technocracy - A Primer

Roger Golden Brown
Published January 6, 2021 - Updated December 22, 2023

Find this PDF <u>here</u> and lots more Global Coup related material on my <u>Quasar website</u>. <u>Check out my eBook</u>, The Covid / <u>Lockdown Crisis - Alternative Information & Sources</u>.

All bullet pointed excerpts and statements are noted with numbers corresponding to footnotes with linked sources at the bottom of the page. Indented entries preceded by a dash (-) are quoted from the noted source.

The reader is urged to use the footnote links to further explore the material and to get context to what is stated in this PDF and to make up their own mind as to what is really going on.



Preface

Although this PDF is part of the Global Coup Related Specific Topic series, it will not have a major focus on specific related issues or specific players, rather on the growing dominance of technocrats in the world.

Also this PDF will differ from the others in the Global Coup Related Specific Topic series in that it will favor more narrative and have less quoted footnoted matter from the horse's mouth. As a primer its intent is to familiarize readers with the idea that there are

technocrats engineering society; the mess we are in isn't just an inevitable byproduct of "progress."

Table of Contents

What is Technocracy?

Some Definitions

The Technocratic Mindset

The Technocrats Historically

Weather Modification

Monsanto

Precursor to Global Governance

The Federal Reserve

Technocracy and Health, Western Medicine

The Robber Barons Hijack the Medical Profession, the Roots of Big Pharma

Technocracy's Increasing Prevalence and Dominance

Public-Private Partnerships

The Trans-Pacific Partnership

5G, The Internet of Things

The National Security Commission on Artificial Intelligence

Moderna's Public-Private Relationship with the Government

Mainstream News, Social Media, and Entertainment

Hollywood and the Pentagon

The Covid Driven Push for a Technocratic New Normal - A Look at Just a Few of the Major Players

The World Economic Forum Sees Covid as an Opportunity

The World Economic Forum and the Great Reset

The Rockefeller Foundation

Bill Gates

The United Nations Sees Covid as Necessitating Global Governance

The International Monetary Fund, The Monetary System

The Ethical No Man's Land of the Technocrats

The Tuskogee Syphilis Experiment

Increasingly Widespread Use of Drugs to Solve Social Problems

Final Thoughts

Relevant Links

What is Technocracy?

Anyone paying any attention at all is aware that the influence of the wealthy elite has grown immensely; a handful of corporations have come to control almost all of the media, influencing not just what "news" we get to hear (and what we don't get to hear), but how we feel about it. Mom and Pop businesses have been steadily replaced with big box stores and now, online shopping. The influx of the big box world and more and more technology into our lives is only part of the technocrats' world view, or agenda; what's at the heart of it is organizing the world in a technical fashion engineered by "experts" and private entities outside of the messiness of democracy and a democratic dialogue.

A sister belief to technocracy is transhumanism. Technocrats want to socially engineer society. Transhumanists want to physically engineer the human body, seeing it as improved by technological enhancement. The transhumanist aspects of technocracy are inherent in the technocratic shaping of society and life. Instead of technology being seen as a tool and respected as a tool that has its place, society, social interaction, communication, agriculture, and all aspects of health are seen as enhanced by technology. Society and being human itself is being mechanized.

This paper will focus on technocrats but will look at the their transhumanist tendencies. A separate PDF will look more at transhumanism in the technocratic new normal.

Another theme of technocracy is megalomania; the technocrats generally seem to be quite comfortable with imposing their beliefs and agendas on the world completely free of any debate or consensus, usually done in relative secrecy and never exposed for what it is by the media.

Some Definitions

- From the Wikipedia "Technocracy movement" page: 1
 - The technocracy movement is a social and ideological movement which arose in the early 20th century. The technocracy movement proposed replacing politicians and businesspeople with scientists and engineers who had the technical expertise to manage the economy.
- From the article, "7 Examples of a Technocracy" on the Simplicable website: 2
 - Technocracy Administrators with a technical background that run global systems, societies, communities or organizations without any oversight by elected representatives.

¹ Wikipedia - <u>Technocracy movement</u>

² Simplicable website - <u>7 Examples of a Technocracy</u>

- From the December, 1964 edition of The Technocrat, Technocratic Inc.'s magazine: 3
 - Who Shall Decide? Technocracy holds that all decisions pertaining to the functional operation of the society - the production and distribution of goods and services, research and governance - should be made by technical men and women.

The Technocratic Mindset

- The technocrats in the 1930's may or may not have had humanity's welfare in mind but it is clear that they consider themselves alone to be up to the task of social engineering to accomplish their ends. Their megalomania is also clear. From The Technocrat magazine, 1937: 4
 - Technocracy is the science of social engineering, the scientific operation of the entire social mechanism to produce and distribute goods and services to the entire population of this continent. For the first time in human history it will be done as a scientific, technical, engineering problem. There will be no place for Politics or Politicians, Finance or Financeers, Rackets or Racketeers.
 - The Technate will encompass the entire American Continent from Panama to the North Pole because the natural resources and the natural boundaries of this area make it an independent, self-sustaining geographical unit. Technocracy's blue-prints have been designed for this continent and for no other. It is an American Plan for the American continent. No imported political philosophies including Democracy, are in any way applicable.
- In a modern example that perfectly illustrates the technocratic mindset, Peter Orszag, formerly vice chairman at Citigroup, adjunct senior fellow at the Council on Foreign Relations, and Obama's director of the Office of Management and Budget, in an article written by him, explains: 5
 - Why we need less democracy I believe that we need to jettison the Civics 101 fairy tale about pure representative democracy and instead begin to build a new set of rules and institutions. ... What we need, then, are ways around our politicians.
- The megalomania of the technocrats manifests itself in a sense of superiority and disdain for others who aren't a part of their club. Akin to that is their affinity for

³ Internet Archive website, Technocratic Inc. magazine - The Technocrat - Whole No. 212 - December 1964

⁴ Internet Archive website, Technocratic Inc. magazine - The Technocrat - Vol. 3 - No. 4 - September 1937

⁵ New Republic website - <u>Too Much of a Good Thing</u>

eugenics. From the June 1951 edition of The Technocrat magazine, in a chapter titled Decline of American Intelligence: ⁶

- The trend in the United States has nearly reached the state where there is not enough superior intelligence left to administer affairs in a manner that will contribute to social advancement. What are we going to do about this situation?
- We shall restrict this discussion to only one of these differences—the one which appears to us to be the most significant at this time; and we shall note the trend it is taking and the probable social effects that will develop from it. We shall choose the differences in general intelligence—the capacity to analyze problems and situations and to work out an effective solution to them. This is a condition which is subject to extreme variation in human beings, and it is essentially hereditary; that is, one is born with a certain capacity and there is not much that one can do to alter it for the better.

The Technocrats Historically

Technocrats and technocracy have long played a role in our lives. Because of the incremental take-over of so many facets of our lives it may be that many people barely realize how comprehensive it is or realize how it's not as much the technology itself that is problematic as the technocrats who want to monopolize life.

This section will look at a few of the technocratic endeavors that have been around for some time, affecting the world. We all knew there were rich people who had money and power, but the history books shy away from shedding light on what they were really up to.

(For a great 2 part documentary covering some of the most important aspects of the rise in power of the technocrats see the link at the end of this PDF for: How and Why Big Oil Conquered The World".)

Weather Modification

Weather modification is a great first example of technocrats doing what they want without engaging the public in any kind of democratic process. Weather modifications is one form of geoengineering. Again we see the word engineering; like with the original technocratic movement's desire to engineer society, engineering the natural world is a natural extension.

In case the reader has heard of chemtrails and thinks that they are just a crazy conspiracy theory, I refer you to the link in the Relevant Links section at the end of this PDF for the documentary, "Frankenskies" by Matt Landman. The first 40 minutes of it is packed full of outtakes from news reports and government films about weather modification projects, leaving no doubt that the technocrats have long been trying to modify weather, for many reasons including, of course, military.

Also check out the Weather Modification History website in the Relevant Links section. It is a very comprehensive look at the history of weather modification.

Here's just one example of a megalomaniacal plan backed by Bill Gates, one of the premier technocrats playing a major role in the technocratic new normal.

- From the CNBC website: 7
 - Bill Gates is backing the first high-altitude experiment of one radical approach called solar geoengineering. It's meant to mimic the effects of a giant volcanic eruption. Thousands of planes would fly at high altitudes, spraying millions of tons of particles around the planet to create a massive chemical cloud that would cool the surface.
 - The technology is not far from being ready and it's affordable, but it could cause massive changes in regional weather patterns and eradicate blue sky.

Monsanto

Covering the details of Monsanto's history is far beyond the scope of this PDF. But a quick look at Monsanto in India tells a lot about their ruthless technocratic usurping of a country's agriculture.

- Monsanto got India's farmers hooked on their genetically modified seeds. The seed grew plants that themselves would not produce viable seeds; the farmers had to continue to buy the seeds again from Monsanto - a technocratic usurping of millennia of farmers growing food using nature's natural cycle. From a 2014 article on the Natural Society website: 8
 - It is no secret that Monsanto is making life difficult for countless farmers in America with its parented seeds. After all, the biotech giant has already filed 145 lawsuits (or on average about 9 lawsuits every year for 16 straight years) against farmers who have "improperly reused their patented seeds." But did you know that Monsanto is also leading hundreds of thousands of farmers to suicide?

⁷ CNBC Website - This Bill Gates-funded chemical cloud could help stop global warming

⁸ Natural Society website - How Monsanto's GMO Creations Caused 291,000 Suicides in India

- Biotech has attempted to dismiss the rise in farmer suicides in India due to the introduction of genetically modified crops, but the problem is too pervasive to wipe under the rug. While there are numerous contributing factors to farmer suicides in India, debt is the largest concern that has been fueled by non-viable crops.
- Biotech sells seeds that either don't grow or lead to the development of unstoppable superweeds and superbugs. Subsequently, biotech urges and nearly forces farmers to purchase RoundUp and other herbicidal chemicals which the farmers can ill afford. Thus, the mind-numbing cycle begins.
- As evidence of the incursion of technocrats into what is supposed to be a democratic government, Barack Obama packed his cabinet with close ties to Monsanto. From an article on the Liberty Beacon website titled How did Barack Obama Become Monsanto's Man in Washington: 9
 - At the USDA, as the director of the National Institute of Food and Agriculture, Roger Beachy, former director of the Monsanto Danforth Center.
 - As deputy commissioner of the FDA, the new food-safety-issues czar, the infamous Michael Taylor, former vice-president for public policy for Monsanto.
 - As commissioner of the USDA, lowa governor, Tom Vilsack. Vilsack had set up a national group, the Governors' Biotechnology Partnership, and had been given a Governor of the Year Award by the Biotechnology Industry Organization, whose members include Monsanto.
 - As the new Agriculture Trade Representative, who would push GMOs for export, Islam Siddiqui, a former Monsanto lobbyist.
 - As the new counsel for the USDA, Ramona Romero, who had been corporate counsel for another biotech giant, DuPont.
 - As the new head of the USAID, Rajiv Shah, who had previously worked in key positions for the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation, a major funder of GMO agriculture research.
 - We should also remember that Obama's secretary of state, Hillary Clinton, once worked for the Rose law firm. That firm was counsel to Monsanto.

Precursor to Global Governance

The original technocrats of Technocracy Inc. envisioned global governance, albeit only on a continental scale at that time.

- From the introduction in the "Technocracy Study Course", published in 1947 by Technocracy Inc., the efficiency the technocrats desire would require continental governance: 10
 - The production and distribution of an abundance of physical wealth on a Continental scale for the use of all Continental citizens can only be accomplished by a Continental technological control, a governance of function, a Technate.
- Also from the Technocracy Study Course, one sees the technocratic need for total control of the populace. From a chapter called Technocracy: The Design, in a section called Requirements, the control that would be needed is outlined. Some excerpts: 10
 - Register on a continuous 24-hour time period basis the total net conversion of energy.
 - Provide a continuous 24-hour inventory of all production and consumption.
 - Provide a specific registration of the type, kind, etc., of all goods and services, where produced, and where used.
 - Provide specific registration of the consumption of each individual, plus a record and description of the individual.

The Federal Reserve

The Federal Reserve is a great example of technocracy that is behind the scenes and that few people even think about or know how much it affects their lives. The Federal Reserve is part of the government but makes independent decisions regarding the economy; it is an in-crowd of bankers who make all the important decisions about how money works.

- What is the Federal Reserve? From Wikipedia: 11
 - The Federal Reserve System is the central banking system of the United States. It was created on December 23, 1913, with the enactment of the Federal Reserve Act, after a series of financial panics (particularly the panic of 1907) led to the desire for central control of the monetary system in order to alleviate financial crises.

¹⁰ Technocracy Inc. website - <u>Technocracy Study Course 1947</u>

- Its duties have expanded over the years, and currently also include supervising and regulating banks, maintaining the stability of the financial system, and providing financial services to depository institutions, the U.S. government, and foreign official institutions.
- Commercial banks can elect Fed board members. From Wikipedia: 12
 - Nationally chartered commercial banks are required to hold stock in, and can elect some of the board members of, the Federal Reserve Bank of their region.
- Although tied to the United States government, the Fed is independent. From an article called Who Owns the Federal Reserve? on the Federal Reserve website: ¹³
 - Though the Congress sets the goals for monetary policy, decisions of the Board - and the Fed's monetary policy-setting body, the Federal Open Market Committee - about how to reach those goals do not require approval by the President or anyone else in the executive or legislative branches of government.
- The Fed sets rates and is in charge of, essentially, the value of money. From Wikipedia: 12
 - The term "monetary policy" refers to the actions ... to influence the availability and cost of money and credit to help promote national economic goals. What happens to money and credit affects interest rates (the cost of credit) and the performance of an economy. The Federal Reserve Act of 1913 gave the Federal Reserve authority to set monetary policy in the United States.

So now we see who controls the Federal Reserve, but how did the Federal Reserve come into being? Was the Federal Reserve Act born of an idea of how to better the handling of money proposed by elected representatives of the people, and for the benefit of the people? On the contrary, it was cooked up by the bankers themselves precisely to sideline the democratic process and put them in the driver's seat. Technocratic megalomania at its best.

- In 1910 representatives of the biggest banks met in secret to craft a bill to present to Congress. Their "Aldrich Plan" didn't garner enough support to pass but in 1913, with new president Woodrow Wilson, a modified version passed. From Wikipedia: 14
 - In 1910, Nelson Aldrich, the chief of the Congress created National Monetary Commission, and executives representing the banks of J.P. Morgan, Rockefeller, and Kuhn, Loeb & Co., secluded themselves for ten

¹² Wikipedia - The Federal Reserve

¹³ Federal Reserve website - Who Owns the Federal Reserve?

¹⁴ Wikipedia - <u>History of the Federal Reserve System</u>

days at Jekyll Island, Georgia. The executives included Frank A. Vanderlip, president of the National City Bank of New York, associated with the Rockefellers; Henry Davison, senior partner of J.P. Morgan Company; Charles D. Norton, president of the First National Bank of New York; and Col. Edward M. House, who would later become President Woodrow Wilson's closest adviser and founder of the Council on Foreign Relations.

- Vanderlip wrote in his 1935 autobiography From Farmboy to Financier, "Despite my views about the value to society of greater publicity for the affairs of corporations, there was an occasion, near the close of 1910, when I was as secretive, indeed, as furtive as any conspirator. ... I do not feel it is any exaggeration to speak of our secret expedition to Jekyll Island as the occasion of the actual conception of what eventually became the Federal Reserve System. Although the Aldrich Federal Reserve Plan was defeated when it bore the name Aldrich, nevertheless its essential points were all contained in the plan that was finally adopted."

Technocracy and Health, Western Medicine

The institution of western medicine itself can be viewed as a major step by the technocrats, moving away from such practices as herbology, acupuncture, and homeopathy to a more mechanical view of the body and life itself. With this paradigm the overseers of the western medicine institution have not only villainized natural based medicine but have assumed the authority so that they have the final word as to what is acceptable and what is "scientifically" sound. The technocrat's new normal assumes an even more militant dominion of the technocratic western medicine paradigm.

The transhumanist mechanical view of the body is integral in the western medicine paradigm. Western medicine's mechanical view has only now in recent decades even begun to accept that diet, life style, and stress play a role in health. Instead, drugs and other medical interventions are the order of the day.

The Robber Barons Hijack the Medical Profession, the Roots of Big Pharma

The oil tycoons of the early 20th century learned that petroleum could be used for far more than powering cars and proceeded to insinuate the use of petroleum into society in order to expand their wealth. One of the things they did was fund a report that led to the takeover of medicine by allopathic medicine and the stigmatizing of natural medicine which had been popular at that time.

• From Wikipedia: 15

- The Flexner Report is a book-length landmark report of medical education in the United States and Canada, written by Abraham Flexner and published in 1910 under the aegis of the Carnegie Foundation. Many aspects of the present-day American medical profession stem from the Flexner Report and its aftermath.
- The Report (also called Carnegie Foundation Bulletin Number Four) called on American medical schools to enact higher admission and graduation standards, and to adhere strictly to the protocols of mainstream science in their teaching and research. The report talked about the need for revamping and centralizing medical institutions. Many American medical schools fell short of the standard advocated in the Flexner Report and, subsequent to its publication, nearly half of such schools merged or were closed outright.
- In an article titled How The Flexner Report Hijacked Natural Medicine, they explain the connection between the robber barons (Rockefeller and Carnegie) and modern medicine. From the Cancertutor website: ¹⁶
 - Keep in mind there were no real effective governmental agencies in place monitoring the state of affairs within the medical community, so what Flexner did at the behest of the robber barons, he did so in favor of profits rather than the long-term care of patients. He effectively created a culture that enabled the monetization of medicine like never before. This might not have been his intent, but the outcome speaks for itself.
 - The doctors from that point forward in history would be taught pharmaceutical drugs. All of the great teaching institutions in America were captured by the pharmaceutical interests in this fashion.

Technocracy's Increasing Prevalence and Dominance

This section looks at a few examples of the technocracy and technocratic institutions that have in recent years expanded their power and their influence over some of the aspects of our lives, wielding that power to shape the world more than anyone should in a democratic society. This mostly being done quietly with virtually no attention being paid to it by mainstream media.

Also technocrats are increasingly global in their scope, which is accelerating since Covid's rollout and the trend will continue dramatically in the new normal.

Public-Private Partnerships

Researching any of the major technocratic players these days, one hears the phrase public-private partnership over and over. It would be nice if it meant that some company was helping the government better carry out the will of the people. Unfortunately it means just the opposite. The line between governments that ostensibly represent the people and huge corporations and their bottom line has become inexorably blurred. Media giants, industry giants, tech companies and governments now work hand in hand towards the same goals.

The Trans-Pacific Partnership

The Trans-Pacific Partnership (TPP) was a trade deal that the Obama administration pushed hard to pass and fortunately never succeeded in getting passed, even as it was fast tracked in Congress. It was, however, (with a new name) signed by 11 countries. In any case, it is a window into the future; they are not about to give up simply because the United States didn't play ball in that one instance.

- As per the second definition of technocracy in the first section, the process of fast tracking a bill in Congress is intended to bypass the democratic process. From the Electronic Frontier Foundation website: ¹⁷
 - Fast Track, also known as trade promotion authority (TPA) would transfer Congress' power over trade policy to the President, by preventing them from debating or modifying the terms of trade deals after international negotiations are finalized.
- The TPP was negotiated in secret; the public was completely shut out (except for leaked information) and the United States Congress had limited restricted access. However many corporations were party to the negotiations. From the New American website:¹⁸
 - It is a fact that after more than three years of (secret) negotiations, the administration still has not made the draft texts of either of the agreements available to the public. It is a fact that elected members of the U.S. Congress are only allowed to see the text under severely restricted conditions: They must go to a special room, must leave their cell phones behind, may not make any copies, are monitored while in the room, and before leaving must surrender all notes they have taken. On the other hand, it is also a fact that private "cleared" representatives of, for example, pharmaceutical companies, Hollywood studios, Wall Street, and other

¹⁷ Electronic Frontier Foundation website - <u>Secret TPP Negotiations - And Public Protests - To Be Held in New York City</u>

¹⁸ New American website - 10 Reasons Why You Should Oppose TPP and TTIP

corporate interests are given passwords to access the documents online at their leisure.

- The TPP would have given corporations the ability to sue governments for actions or laws that hurt their bottom line. Essentially it would have subordinated the sovereignty of nations or any localities whose laws were in their way. The implications of that are far reaching. Lori Wallach, the director of Public Citizen's Global Trade Watch had this to say on Democracy Now: 19
 - The TPP would open to 9,000 more corporations the right to drag the U.S. government into investor-state corporate tribunals. Those are the extrajudicial tribunals where panels of three corporate attorneys would be empowered to rule on a claim brought directly against the U.S. government by a foreign corporation claiming they should get compensation from our tax dollars for any domestic law they think violates their rights under the agreement, and they should get paid for their lost future profits for having to meet our laws.
 - Provisions of the TPP—because most of it's not about trade; 29 chapters, only five about trade—chapters would undermine Internet freedom. The patent chapter would increase medicine prices. It gives big pharmaceutical companies extra monopolies. The financial services chapter would roll back financial regulation. Basically, the entire agenda that is necessary for a decent life and livelihood and health of America, and the people in the 11 other countries, is being rolled back in the name of a trade agreement that really is just a corporate Trojan horse tool negotiated for six years in secrecy.
- Although the US dropped out, the TPP was signed by 11 countries in March of 2018 in Santiago, Chile; not a complete loss for the corporations. From the Nikkei Asia website: ²⁰
 - Eleven Pacific Rim countries signed the revised Trans-Pacific Partnership here Thursday afternoon, finalizing the trade and investment agreement just over a year after the American withdrawal left its fate in question.
 - The pact, renamed the Comprehensive and Progressive Agreement for Trans-Pacific Partnership, retains all of the tariff reductions and eliminations from the original version signed in 2016 by the 11 nations and the U.S. It suspends 22 other provisions, including some intellectual property rules.

¹⁹ Democracy Now website - <u>"A Corporate Trojan Horse": Critics Decry Secretive TPP Trade Deal as a Threat to Democracy</u>

²⁰ Nikkei Asia website - Eleven countries sign revamped TPP in Chile

5G, The Internet of Things

The Internet of Things driven by 5G is the technocrats dream. The debate about 5G and its safety is a can of worms this paper is not going to get into, but it deserves mention because it is a big part of the technocrats' playbook. It expedites the expansion of the top down control and the monitoring of life.

Whatever effect electromagnetic energy, especially powerful 5G, has or may have is worthy of debate and should not be shoved down humanity's throat. Not to mention its vast infrastructure.

5G is sneaking up on us. And that is because governments are working with the powers-that-be behind the scenes to push it forward with as little attention as possible. Legislation regarding 5G has enabled the technocrats to override local sovereignty.

- State and federal laws are making it difficult for towns and residents to fight the placement of 5G towers. From the National Conference of State Legislatures website: ²¹
 - Prior to 2019, 21 state legislatures have enacted small cell legislation that streamlines regulations to facilitate the deployment of 5G small cells.
 - Twenty-five states and Puerto Rico have introduced mobile 5G and small cell-related legislation in the 2019 legislative session.
 - These laws take into consideration the unique circumstances of their state and local environment, but baseline principles can be established and are consistent with wireless industry standards, including: Streamlined applications to access public rights of way. Caps on costs and fees. Streamlined timelines for the consideration and processing of cell siting applications.
- To enable the push for 5G, Elon Musk's company SpaceX is planning to have 42,000 satellites surrounding the Earth. This could spell the end to humans being able to enjoy the serenity of a clear night sky. From SpaceNews website: ²²
 - SpaceX, which is already planning the world's largest low-Earth-orbit broadband constellation by far, filed paperwork in recent weeks for up to 30,000 additional Starlink satellites on top of the 12,000 already approved by the U.S. Federal Communications Commission.
- SpaceX wants to build 5 million Earth terminals for his satellites. From Wccftech website: ²³

²¹ National Conference of State Legislatures website - Mobile 5G and Small Cell 2019 Legislation

²² SpaceNews website - SpaceX submits paperwork for 30,000 more Starlink satellites

²³ Wccftech website - SpaceX Asks FCC To Increase Authorized Starlink Terminals To Five Million

- The company's earlier application with the FCC, which was approved in March this year [2020], asked the body to approve the deployment of one million Earth stations (or user terminals). Now, in a modification to the original filing yesterday, SpaceX has asked the Commission to increase this number to five million.
- SpaceX's project is vastly increasing the number of bright visible objects orbiting Earth.

 From the Atlantic website: ²⁴
 - These satellites have turned out to be far more reflective than anyone, even SpaceX engineers, expected. Before Starlink, there were about 200 objects in orbit around Earth that could be seen with the unaided eye. In less than a year, SpaceX has added another 240. "These are brighter than probably 99 percent of existing objects in Earth orbit right now," says Pat Seitzer, a professor emeritus at the University of Michigan who studies orbital debris.

The National Security Commission on Artificial Intelligence

The National Security Commission on Artificial Intelligence is a little known organization created by the 2018 National Defense Authorization Act. In an effort to get the upper hand on China in the world of artificial intelligence (Al) the NSCAI shows a kind of envy of China's ability to move ahead with new technology and their doing away with what they call "legacy" systems. They aspire to something similar to China's successful unhindered technocratic model.

- In a PDF from the NSCAI titled Chinese Tech Landscape Overview, we see the envy of China's technocracy: ²⁵
 - "Adoption" [of Al] happens far more quickly in China due to structural factors. The most significant of these are: 1. Lack of legacy systems e.g. lack of credit cards = mobile payment, 2. Scale of consumer market e.g. extreme urban density = on-demand service adoption, 3. Explicit government support and involvement e.g. facial recognition deployment.
- The NSCAI PDF document also envies how openly China's government partners with private corporations: ²⁴
 - National Al Team: Government partnership can be even more explicit. China's Ministry of Science and Technology is hand-picking companies to be a part of the National Al Team, and handing them key areas of focus.

²⁴ The Atlantic website - The Night Sky Will Never Be the Same

²⁵ National Security Commission on Artificial Intelligence PDF - Chinese Tech Landscape Overview

 The public-private cooperation they desire is realized in the NSCAI itself. From the NSCAI website Commissioners page: The chairman of the NSCAI is Eric Schmidt, the former head of Alphabet, Google's parent company. Some of the other commissioners are Eric Horvitz of Microsoft, Andy Jassy of Amazon Web Services, and Andrew Moore of Google. ²⁶

Moderna's Public-Private Relationship with the Government

- Moderna, the company who received \$483 million from Operation Warp Speed to develop their mRNA vaccine (which is now being distributed in the United States) is being assisted by the Pentagon's Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency (DARPA). From the Last American Vagabond website: ²⁷
 - Since at least last fall, 2019, Moderna has sought to resolve the issue of failing to succeed with previous vaccines by adding "nanoparticles" to its mRNA vaccine, a modification financed by Pentagon's Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency.
- Moderna's lists BARDA, the Biomedical Advanced Research and Development Authority, a division of HHS (Health and Human Services), as a strategic partner.
- From the Axios website: 29
 - The NIH (National Institutes of Health) and Moderna have researched coronaviruses, like MERS, for several years, and signed a contract this past December [2019] that stated "mRNA coronavirus vaccine candidates [are] developed and jointly owned" by the two parties.

Mainstream News, Social Media, and Entertainment

Mainstream news is no longer a source of investigative journalism. Its purpose is to make money and to serve the interests of its owners. Just a handful of companies own a tremendous amount of news outlets, ensuring consistent, controlled content and messaging.

Social media giants Google, Facebook, Microsoft, Amazon, Twitter are all, needless to say, technocratic. Google dominates many areas of the internet. Facebook collects an incredible amount of personal data and markets it. Microsoft under Bill Gates was ruthless. Amazon has dominated the shopping market. They are all run by some of the very wealthiest people in the world. But that is not the worst. The worst is that they are all

²⁶ National Security Commission on Artificial Intelligence website - Commissioners

²⁷ The Last American Vagabond website - <u>As Moderna's Covid-19 Vaccine Takes The Lead, Its Chief Medical</u>
Officer's Recent Promotion of "Gene-Editing Vaccines" Comes to Light

²⁸ Moderna's website - Strategic Collaborators

²⁹ Axios website - The NIH claims joint ownership of Moderna's coronavirus vaccine

completely on board with controlling the flow of information, working together with other powerful groups to censor or shape what the populace is exposed to, not just in the communications field but in many projects shaping the technocratic future.

- Amazon, owned by the richest person on the planet is in bed with the nefarious CIA. From a 2014 article by Norman Solomon on the Huffington Post website: 30
 - As the world's biggest online retailer, Amazon wants a benevolent image to encourage trust from customers. Obtaining vast quantities of their personal information has been central to the firm's business model. But Amazon is diversifying and a few months ago the company signed a \$600 million contract with the Central Intelligence Agency to provide "cloud computing" services.
 - Amazon now has the means, motive and opportunity to provide huge amounts of customer information to its new business partner. An official statement from Amazon headquarters last fall declared: "We look forward to a successful relationship with the CIA."
 - Apparently the CIA agrees. The agency gave Amazon the contract for \$600 million even though it wasn't the lowest bid.
- The CIA is expanding it's partnerships with several major tech companies. From an article on the Nextgov website: 31
 - The Central Intelligence Agency has awarded its long-awaited Commercial Cloud Enterprise, or C2E, contract to five companies - Amazon Web Services, Microsoft, Google, Oracle and IBM.

Hollywood and the Pentagon

- In a long standing public-private partnership Hollywood works with the Pentagon, exchanging creative control for access to military hardware. The result, propaganda. From an article on the Sputnik website: 32
 - A vast swathe of documents revealing the extent of US government influence in Hollywood including editing scripts, and blocking critical movies from ever being made have been unearthed, indicating US officials have covertly helped produce at least 800 major movies and 1,000 television shows since 1910.
 - The files were uncovered by Tom Secker, an independent researcher, and Dr. Matthew Alford, a teaching fellow at the University of Bath, after

³⁰ Huffington Post website - Why Amazon's Collaboration With the CIA Is So Ominous – and Vulnerable

³¹ Nextgov website - <u>CIA Awards Secret Multibillion-Dollar Cloud Contract</u>

³² Sputnik News website - <u>Documents Expose How US Government Uses Hollywood to Promote and Propagandize</u>

diligent trawling of over 4,000 US military and intelligence documents obtained under the Freedom of Information Act. They form the basis of the duo's book National Security Cinema.

- Among the trove are office diary reports from assorted military entertainment liaison offices, documents from the Department of Defense and Central Intelligence Agency on changes made to film scripts, production assistance agreements signed between military officials and film producers, and internal government communications about the entertainment industry.
- Typically, state involvement in media projects begin when their producers approach an entertainment liaison office, in search of support and guidance often, they wish to borrow military equipment, or feature locations and/or personnel in their work, which would cost millions to hire privately. The US security state is more often than not happy to oblige in return for a say on the project's content.

The Covid Driven Push for a Technocratic New Normal A Look at Just a Few of the Major Players

As this PDF is just a primer, this section will look briefly at just a few players who have emerged as major players involved in the current Covid driven technocratic take-over and in the new normal.

The World Economic Forum Sees Covid as an Opportunity

The World Economic Forum is at the heart of the global coup and certainly one of the most influential technocratic organizations with the intention clearly stated to be a central figure amidst those running the world. For more information see my PDF, The World Economic Forum.

- In a January 20th interview, just 2 months before the markets would crash worldwide, Klaus Schwab, founder and head of The World Economic Forum, lamented the lack of a sense of emergency required to make major changes: 33
 - I see that we have urgency in emergency, related to the environmental issues. We face an emergency situation and we have not yet really the sense of emergency to address those issues. Of course it's relatively difficult to get such a sense of emergency if the stock markets are doing so well, as we see now.

- From the book, written by Klaus Schwab and Thierry Malleret, Covid-19: The Great Reset, section 1.4., "Geopolitical reset", the authors warn that only global governance can save us: ³⁴
 - In this messy new world defined by a shift towards multipolarity and intense competition for influence, the conflicts or tensions will no longer be driven by ideology (with the partial and limited exception of radical Islam), but spurred by nationalism and the competition for resources. If no one power can enforce order, our world will suffer from a "global order deficit". Unless individual nations and international organizations succeed in finding solutions to better collaborate at the global level, we risk entering an "age of entropy" in which retrenchment, fragmentation, anger and parochialism will increasingly define our global landscape, making it less intelligible and more disorderly.
- From the World Economic Forum website, the Great Reset page: 35
 - We can emerge from this crisis a better world, if we act quickly and jointly. The changes we have already seen in response to COVID-19 prove that a reset of our economic and social foundations is possible. This is our best chance to instigate stakeholder capitalism.

The World Economic Forum and the Great Reset

- The World Economic Forum's Klaus Schwab from an article by him in Time magazine: 36
 - Stakeholder capitalism, a model I first proposed a half-century ago, positions private corporations as trustees of society, and is clearly the best response to today's social and environmental challenges.
- From the 1973 Davos Manifesto: ³⁷
 - The management has to serve society. It must assume the role of a trustee of the material universe for future generations.
- Davos is the informal name of the annual four-day conference held by the World Economic Forum in Davos-Klosters, Switzerland, where some of the most powerful, rich, and influential people in the world meet. Schwab considers those who attend Davos to be the stakeholders he is talking about. From a television interview: 32

³⁴ The Great Reset book - COVID-19 - The Great Reset

³⁵ World Economic Forum website - Now is the time for a 'great reset'

³⁶ Time Magazine website - What Kind of Capitalism Do We Want?

³⁷ World Economic Forum website - <u>Davos Manifesto 1973: A Code of Ethics for Business Leaders</u>

- In my 1970 book I conceptualized for the first time what we call today stakeholder capitalism. And I wanted to create the place where stakeholders could meet. That was the original idea of Davos.

The Rockefeller Foundation

The Rockefellers, as noted in the section on technocrats historically, have always been major players; very possibly the most influential of them all.

- In 2010, the Rockefeller Foundation gamed 4 future scenarios. One is of particular interest. It is the Lock Step scenario. It envisions a dramatic world-wide pandemic and its consequences, how it would play out, and what would be necessary. From the Lock Step scenario simulation: 38
 - At first, the notion of a more controlled world gained wide acceptance and approval. Citizens willingly gave up some of their sovereignty and their privacy to more paternalistic states in exchange for greater safety and stability. Citizens were more tolerant, and even eager, for top-down direction and oversight, and national leaders had more latitude to impose order in the ways they saw fit. In developed countries, this heightened oversight took many forms: biometric IDs for all citizens, for example, and tighter regulation of key industries whose stability was deemed vital to national interests.
- The Rockefeller Foundation has repurposed their Lock Step Scenario into the "National Covid-19 Testing Action Plan - Pragmatic steps to reopen our workplaces and our communities." The plan calls for 30 million US citizens to be Covid-19 tested per week. 39

Bill Gates

As mentioned earlier Bill Gates has funded weather modification projects. Here's just a couple more examples of Bill Gates' technocratic adventures.

- Work at MIT was funded by the Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation to imbed a person's vaccination record directly into the skin. From the article on the Scientific American website: 40
 - Along with the vaccine, a child would be injected with a bit of dye that is invisible to the naked eye but easily seen with a special cell-phone filter, combined with an app that shines near-infrared light onto the skin.

³⁸ Rockefeller Foundation PDF - <u>Scenarios for the Future of Technology and International Development</u>

³⁹ Rockefeller Foundation PDF - National Covid-19 Testing Action Plan

⁴⁰ Scientific American website - Invisible Ink Could Reveal whether Kids Have Been Vaccinated

- "There may be other concerns that patients have about being 'tattooed,' carrying around personal medical information on their bodies or other aspects of this unfamiliar approach to storing medical records," Mark Prausnitz says. "Different people and different cultures will probably feel differently about having an invisible medical tattoo."
- With the schools shut down in response to Covid, New York Governor Andrew Cuomo questioned why school buildings still exist and announced that he would work with Bill Gates to "reimagine education," with technology at the forefront. From Business Insider website, Cuomo: 41
 - The old model of everybody goes and sits in the classroom, and the teacher is in front of that classroom and teaches that class, and you do that all across the city, all across the state, all these buildings, all these physical classrooms why, with all the technology you have?
- Bill Gates has a history of funding private schooling. From the Seattle Education website: 42
 - Bill Gates has been busy for several years funding established organizations or creating new ones to funnel cash into a push to establish charter schools in Washington State and around the country.
- Bill Gates has heavily invested in Monsanto. From a 2010 article in the Guardian: 43
 - The Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation, which is sponsoring the Guardian's Global development site is being heavily criticised in Africa and the US for getting into bed not just with notorious GM company Monsanto, but also with agribusiness commodity giant Cargill.
 - Trouble began when a US financial website published the foundation's annual investment portfolio, which showed it had bought 500,000 Monsanto shares worth around \$23m.
 - But it got worse. South Africa-based watchdog the African Centre for Biosafety then found that the foundation was teaming up with Cargill in a \$10m project to "develop the soya value chain" in Mozambique and elsewhere.
- Bill Gates funded the creation of EarthNow, a project involving 500 satellites equipped with machine learning technology to surveil the entire planet with real-time video.

 From News Punch website: 44

⁴¹ Business Insider website - <u>Andrew Cuomo just tapped Bill Gates to help him 'reimagine' what New York's</u> public schools will look like when they reopen in the fall

⁴² Seattle Education website - Bill Gates has spent \$440M to push charter schools: Here is the list of recipients

⁴³ The Guardian website - Why is the Gates foundation investing in GM giant Monsanto?

⁴⁴ News Punch website - Bill Gates Bankrolls \$1 Billion Plan to Blanket Earth In Video Surveillance Satellites

- Microsoft founder Bill Gates is bankrolling a company that is using a \$1 billion initial equity allocation from investors to plan a network of satellites to provide real-time coverage of almost every location on Earth.
- Washington-based company EarthNow plans to launch an army of more than 500 satellites into our atmosphere, providing its users with near instantaneous video feedback with only one second of delay.

For a deeper dive into Bill Gates' funded projects, connections, and reach see my PDF, "Sources for Bill Gates" found on my website.

The United Nations Sees Covid as Necessitating Global Governance

Ultimately the end game for the technocrats is global governance with corporations and a worldwide technocratic web homogenizing the life experience with the ultimate public-private partnership. What was once conspiracy theory is now openly called for because of the Covid panic.

- From an article by António Guterres, the current Secretary-General of the United Nations: ⁴⁵
 - The pandemic, as horrible as it is, must be a wake-up call that prompts all political leaders to understand that our assumptions and approaches have to change, and that division is a danger to everyone.
 - This understanding could lead people to recognize that the only way to address global fragilities is through much more robust mechanisms of global governance with international cooperation.

The International Monetary Fund, The Monetary System

The World Bank and the International Monetary Fund were created by the winners of World War Two (730 delegates from all 44 Allied nations) at a meeting in Bretton Woods, New Hampshire, to regulate the international monetary and financial order.

Connected to the United Nations, the World Bank and the IMF have been technocratic institutions that have been using their clout to manipulate poorer countries of the world, loaning money in exchange for them privatizing various industries and resources - technocracy at its best.

Now the Covid panic is leveraging a push for a digital currency future. Perhaps the biggest and ultimate coup for the technocrats would be a cashless world; all money is digital and transactions are all done without a physical currency exchange. Part and parcel with the digital money is the absolute real-time identification of everyone everywhere who is using that digital currency.

- The leverage of the Covid crisis is being used to go to the next level of control by the technocrats. Here Kristalina Georgieva, IMF Managing Director, in a video presentation called A New Bretton Woods Moment calls to reorganize the monetary system. From the IMF website, from the text of her October 15th speech: 46
 - Today we face a new Bretton Woods "moment." A pandemic that has already cost more than a million lives. An economic calamity that will make the world economy 4.4 % smaller this year and strip an estimated \$11 trillion of output by next year. And untold human desperation in the face of huge disruption and rising poverty for the first time in decades.
 - And investing in our young people is investing in our future. They need access to health and education, and also access to the internet because that gives them access to the digital economy so critical for growth and development in the future.
 - The best memorial we can build to those who have lost their lives in this crisis is, in the words of Keynes, "that bigger thing" building a more sustainable and equitable world. Our founders did it. It is now our turn. This is our moment!
- The Bank for International Settlements (BIS) is an international financial institution owned by central banks that "fosters international monetary and financial cooperation and serves as a bank for central banks". Here Agustin Carstens, BIS Manager says definitively that the central bank control of currency, using CBDC [central bank digital currency], will be absolute. From a YouTube video of a conference with Kristalina Georgieva and others, at 24 minutes into the video Carstens explains the control digital currency offers: 47
 - The central bank will have absolute control on the rules and regulations that will determine the use of that expression of central bank liability and also we will have the technology to enforce that.

The Ethical No Man's Land of the Technocrats

This short section takes a look at the ethical no man's land where the technocrats' projects often dwell; almost all of the things mentioned above have far reaching implications for the populace at large who are never party to the decisions made. Here are a few more examples of the technocratic ethics-free mind set.

The Tuskogee Syphilis Experiment

For 40 years United States government health agencies used humans as guinea pigs to study the progress of untreated syphilis.

- From the Wikipedia article: 48
 - The Tuskegee Syphilis Study was a clinical study conducted between 1932 and 1972 by the United States Public Health Service and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). The purpose of this study was to observe the natural history of untreated syphilis; the African-American men in the study were told they were receiving free health care from the Federal government of the United States.
 - Investigators enrolled in the study a total of 600 impoverished, African-American sharecroppers from Macon County, Alabama. Of these men, 399 had latent syphilis, with a control group of 201 men who were not infected. The men who had syphilis were never informed of their diagnosis.

Increasingly Widespread Use of Drugs to Solve Social Problems

- In recent decades there has been a dramatic increase in using drugs to control children's behavior. From a 2014 article on the National Institute of Mental Health website: 49
 - As many as 10,000 toddlers may be receiving psychostimulant medication.
 - The National Center for Health Statistics reports that 7.5 percent of U.S. children between ages 6 and 17 were taking medication for "emotional or behavioral difficulties" in 2011-2012.
 - The CDC reports a five-fold increase in the number of children under 18 on psychostimulants from 1988-1994 to 2007–2010. The rate of antipsychotic prescriptions for children has increased six-fold over this same period.
- In 2017 a study, written by six Germans and an American, and edited by Bruce S. McEwen, The Rockefeller University, was published titled Oxytocin-Enforced Norm Compliance Reduces Xenophobic Outgroup Rejection. The study experimented to see how drugging people with the drug oxytocin might make them less xenophobic:50

⁴⁸ Wikipeida - The Tuskegee Syphilis Study

⁴⁹ The National Institute of Mental Health website - <u>Post by Former NIGH Director Thomas Insel: Are Children</u> Overmedicated?

⁵⁰ PNAS (Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences) website - <u>Oxytocin-enforced norm compliance</u> reduces xenophobic outgroup rejection

- These findings reveal the underlying sociobiological conditions associated with outgroup-directed altruism by showing that charitable social cues co-occurring with enhanced activity of the oxytocin system [nasal delivery of the neuropeptide oxytocin] reduce the effects of xenophobia by facilitating prosocial behavior toward refugees.

Final Thoughts

Since the days of the Robber Barons in the late 19th Century and early 20th Century technocrats have been manipulating many facets of society, mostly behind the scenes. The coming of the digital era has facilitated the acceleration of their dominion over more and more aspects of our society with more and more efficiency. And now with Covid (and sure to come future crises) as excuses for more top down control, they hope to drive the nail in the coffin of the average person's or community's ability to play any role in bettering their lives.

Now more than ever it's important to be aware that the issues that plague society are not a natural evolution into a more complex world that seems unmanageable. It is intentional.

Relevant Links

Articles

The Siamese Twins Of Technocracy And Transhumanism - Technocracy News

Weather Modification History Website

The Seeds Of Suicide: How Monsanto Destroys Farming

Secret Trans-Pacific Partnership Agreement (TPP) - IP Chapter - WikiLeaks

America Is a Technocracy, Not a Democracy

What You Should Know About 5G Satellites—How Musk's Sci-Fi Dreams Are Becoming
Our Living Nightmare - Children's Health Defense

<u>Techno-Tyranny: How the US National Security State Is Using Coronavirus To Fulfill An</u>
<u>Orwellian Vision</u> - Whitney Webb

The Perfect Technocracy: Facebook's Attempt to Create Good Government for 900 Million People

Videos

Frankenskies - weather modification documentary

How & Why Big Oil Conquered The World - James Corbett 2 part documentary

Security services cinema - lights, camera, redaction

Your Guide to the Great Monetary Reset - James Corbett

Old Technocracy Magazines

Internet Archive source of lots of magazines and such on technocracy